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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Built in 1923, the Casa de Josefina is a twenty-five room mansion
sitting atop a sllght prominence to the east of, and overlooking Lake
Amoret. While much of its lavish landscaping has disappeared, the
building and the surrounding terrain have been little altered since
the original construction. The style can best be characterized as
Florida Boom, combining Italian, Spanish, Gothic and nondescript
elements in an eclecticand theatrical display. In plan it resembles
a vast inverted "E", 215 feet across its main facade with three wings
reaching some 70 feet to the rear; the central entrance grouping is
fronted by a wide terrace, and the two areas within the arms of the
"E" are developed as courtyards. The predominant building material
is tan-painted stucco over wood frame and metal lath, however, a
great deal of cut cochina is utilized as well as occasional details
of marble, granite, fieldstone, terra-cotta, wrought iron and wood.
The building is set up on masonry foundation walls approximately
2% feet in height, and while most of it is one story, some second
and third story spaces are utilized, but primarily for effect. The
rambling wings of the house are tied together by a combination of
flat, hipped and pent roofs, however most are masked by crenellated
parapets; visible roof areas were covered in red barrel tile in the
original.

The long wing on the south (main) facade was intended as the
living area of the house. 1Its focal point was its large entry hall
with fieldstone paving and two-story groined vaulting. The rest
of the wing was occupied by living rooms, dining and billiard rooms,
and studies. Each room opened to a wide, windowed corridor on the
rear providing both view and access to the two courtyards. The wing
on the west included kitchen, utility spaces, servants quarters and
four-car garage; both the middle and east arms of the "E" were used
for bedrooms. The courtyard on the west is paved and provided ac-
cess to the garage and service areas, while the one on the east was
landscaped as an interior garden with pools, fountains and statuary.

There are rich and unexpected decorative details everywhere, but
architectural interest is concentrated at the central entrance group-
ing. A large terrace fronts the entrance; it has a low parapet wall
of cochina, and where it joins the south wall of the house, it is
clasped between two castellated towers. A two-story, central block
rises above the main mass of the house and connects to the towers
by rampart walks. The first floor is pierced by a series of semi-
circular arches which carry around three sides of the towers and
down the main facade; most windows at the second story are flat-
topped. The main entrance door is located on the right side of the
central block and recessed under a segmental arch; it has rusticated
masonry surrounds topped off by a cartouche and scrolls. To the west
of the door a pair of casement windows are set in a common surround
with a pent hood above. Three elaborate stained-glass windows pierce
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Casa de Josefina was the home of Irw1n Arthur Yarnell (1876 ~-1936),
a Polk County banker and real estate developer 1mportant in the early
growth of the Lake Wales area. Mr. Yarnell was born in Francesville,
Indiana, and began his career in banking and real estate first in South
Dakota and later in Minnesota. He first came to Florida as a visitor in
1907, and later returned to invest in, and develop, extensive properties
at Crooked Lake, now Babson Park. One of his first concerted campaigns in
building the Lake Wales region came when he interested members of the
University of Minnesota faculty in buying a large tract of land for a
botancial garden. The garden never materialized, but others began to hear
of the Yarnell developments, and they became the object of increasing real
estate speculation in the late teen's and early twenties. Yarnell was
also responsible for establishing a French Canadian colony at what is now
known as St. Anne's Shrine, located a few miles southeast of Lake Wales.
His last and most ambitious development was Highland Park, originally a
tract of some 3,000 acres organized in 1919. The community was structured
as a private club with membership fees of $500 per person. A ten acre
citrus grove cost>$10,000 and the average price for a house site was $1,000.
Despite the inflated values, Yarnell's promotions attracted buyers. Until
his death, Irwin Yarnell remained an important booster of the area and its
burgeoning citrus industry. He was active in community affairs and noted
for his acts of philanthropy.

The Casa de Josefina was built for, and named in honor of Yarnell's
wife, Josephine. According to family tradition, conception of its design
came primarily from Mrs. Yarnell. It was designed by Edward B. Stratton
(1870 - ?), a Boston architect and former student of F.E. Kidder, and the
contractor was L.S. Acuff, builder of most of the homes at Highland Park.
The Casa de Josefina was the most elaborate of the several homes built
at Highland Park and served as the unofficial community center. An undated
description of an evenlng spent at the Casa gives a glimpse of the atmo-

. sphere that the Yarnell's were trying to create:

On a summery, moonlit night the Yarnells invited
guests to a reading of Romeo and Juliet by an eminent
professor from the University of Chicago. The Casa
never looked more fairylike. Guitars played soft
music, the fountains splashed in the moonlight,
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Present and original physical appearance. (con't)

the second story. The central window has a semicircular arch springing
from two engaged spiral columns; it is fronted by a decorative balcony
with a curved, wrought iron railing, and the window mullions rise to
pointed arches. Each of the flanking windows have two rectangular plates
separated by an engaged spiral column, tile surrounds, and a projecting
lintel. The crenellated parapet atop the central block projects slightly
on corbels to give the appearance of machicolation. The towers to either
side of the central block are similar in proportion, but the one on the
east is more complex than its rectangular counterpart on the west. The
east tower 1is square in plan with chamfered corners. The arcaded porch
at its first floor gives access to a spiral staircase leading to its
second and third story levels. Each side of the second story is pierced
by three loop windows. The chamfered corner stops short of the top of
the second story and flares outward in a series of steps; the parapet
above has machicolation, and the tower is crowned by a small octagonal
turret with arched openings and a crenellated parapet.

There are pavilions, tower projections, arcaded porches and other
devices at various points throughout the building, however, all are
relatively plain when compared to the central entrance grouping. This
rambling melange is given some cohesion by the continous battlements
and the unifying effect of the plain stuccoed walls. Windows are of
many varying sizes, shapes and types, and stained glass is used in
abundance. The interiors in the bedroom wings are restrained, but those
in the living wing (south) are highly textured and decorated in stone,
wood and metal. European art objects, including Italian frescoes,
Byzantine mosaics and statuary, were built into the house as were quite
a few "antiques" of recent manufacture.

A small office and nursery house similar in styling, stood in the
grove to the rear of the house, however these are slated for demolition.
The only substantial alteration of the house was made in 1925 when the
central entrance hall was opened up into a full two story height, elim-
inating the upstairs drawing room. The building is currently being re-
novated for use as a clubhouse and recreation center for an adjacent
condominium development. Many landscape features are being restored
and only minor alterations to the interior are planned.
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Statement of Significance. (con't)

Japanese lanterns cast their bewitching light
on the paths as tall, majestic trees swayed
gently in the evening air.

It was the world of young lovers in Verona
beneath an Italian night sky of centuries long
gone. (Kaucher, p. 163).

Florida's history is speckled with grandiose schemes and plans, and
none was more flamboyant than the dreams of the capitalists and devel-
opers of the 1920's. While there are certainly better examples of
"Boom" architecture in Florida, the Casa de Josefina must rank with
the more exuberant. The naivete of its styling reflects a period that
sought elegance in the architectural cliches of an imagined past, and
its opulence is a testament to what was done before the Bust, the De-
pression, and income tax.
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